
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

 

  

 

 

                      

                                                                               
   

AGENDA 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, September 13, 2011 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
              
 9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

� August 30, 2011 
� August 30, 2011 Special 

   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
Clerk  
a. Copier Lease w/Pacific Office Automation  
Commissioners 
b. Letter to BF Fair Association Re 2011 Fair & Rodeo  
c. Letter to Elected Officials & Managers Re 2011 Fair 
d. Appreciation Letters Regarding Badger Mountain Centennial Preserve  
e. Letter to City of Richland Re Recreational Use Agreements w/the Barker Ranch 
f. Time of Remembrance Proclamation 
g. Line Item Transfer Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107 
h. Line Item Transfer Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 
i. House Bill 2124 and Senate Bill 5964 Support 
Facilities 
j.    Contract Amendment w/Dynamic Sales & Services, Inc.  
Fairgrounds 
k. Vehicle Purchase Authorization From Columbia Ford Mercury Hyundai  
Human Services 
l. Surplus of Personal Property 
m. Lease Addendum w/Bassett/Sonju J/V 
n. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 551 
Juvenile 
o. Truancy Contract w/Pasco School District    
p. Truancy Contract w/Kennewick School District  
q. Authorization for Grant Expenditures 
Personnel 
r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0504-101, Dept. 000 
s. Personal Services Contract w/Penser NorthAmerica, Inc.  
Public Works 
t. Public Hearing Authorization for Vacation of Unimproved Right of Way   

Leo Bowman 
District 1 
Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on highlighted area



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 
commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
September 13, 2011 
Page Two 
 
 

u. Authorization to Proceed w/Apply-A-Line, Inc. Contract  
Sheriff 
v. Contract w/Custom Welding & Ornamental Iron, LLC for Installation of Bunk Ladders  
w. Purchase Authorization for Miscellaneous Items from Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply, Inc. 
x. Purchase Authorization for Food Service Gloves & Cups from Columbia Basin Paper & 

Supply 
y. Purchase Authorization for Paper Towels from Airgas Safety, Inc.   
z. Salary Request Statement     
Treasurer 
aa. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0129-101, Dept. 000 

 
9:05 AM Public Hearings: 
 
  Surplus Property – K Mercer 
 
  Public Urination Ordinance – R Lukson  
 
  Scheduled Business:     
 

Private Road Name Change (PR11-01) – M Shuttleworth 
 
  Gang Abatement Update – Sheriff Keane 
 
  Unscheduled Visitors  

   Board Assignment Update 

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, August 30, 2011, 9:00 a.m. 
Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
 
Present: Chairman Leo Bowman 
  Commissioner James Beaver 
  Commissioner Shon Small  
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Human Services Manager Ed 
Thornbrugh; Public Works Manager Steve Becken; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; 
County Engineer Malcolm Bowie; DPA Ryan Brown; Erhiza Rivera and Nick Kooiker, 
Treasurer’s Office; Auditor Brenda Chilton; Treasurer Duane Davidson; Central Services 
Manager Randy Reid.  
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of August 23, 2011 were approved.  
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “m”.   
Commissioner Small seconded. Chairman Bowman requested item “c” be pulled for discussion.  
Upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Assessor 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 101 
Auditor 

b. Copier Lease Agreement w/Ikon Office Solutions 
Commissioners 

d. Rescinding Resolution 11-540, Ordinance Relating to Increased Fees in the Sheriff’s 
Office 

Facilities 
e. Second Contract Amendment w/Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc.   

Fairgrounds 
f. Purchase Authorization w/A&B Asphalt 
g. Lease Agreement w/Atomic City Rollergirls 



 - 2 - 

Human Services 
h. Agreement w/Columbia Basin Veterans Coalition 

Juvenile 
i. Truancy Contract w/Finley School District   
j. Truancy Contract w/Prosser School District 

Office of Public Defense 
k. Indigent Defense Payment Authorization for Attorney M. Spencer 

Personnel 
l. Purchase Authorization from ProForce Marketing, Inc. for Taser Weapons and 

Assessories 
Public Works 

m. Contract w/Apply-A-Line, Inc. for Pavement Markings 
 
Item “c” Travel Policy 
 
Chairman Bowman reviewed the following sections: 
 
Page 2 – 1.2.2:  He suggested that section be changed to reflect reimbursements could not be 
made to other organizations other than as approved by the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners to accommodate special situations.  The Board discussed it and Mr. Sparks said 
the County should not be paying for other organizations.  Also, the examples Chairman Bowman 
used were otherwise covered.   
 
Page 4 - 1.5.1.5.1/1.5.1.5.3 (mileage): He said the language seemed complicated and the policy 
could be simplified.  Ms. Smith Kelty said there were instances where employees were reading 
the language differently and they were trying to capture what was been happening.  The Board 
agreed to have Ms. Smith Kelty re-write that section.    
 
Page 8 – 1.9.1.4.13 (moving expenses): Chairman Bowman suggested it refer to the personnel 
policy regarding reimbursing moving expenses. The Board agreed.  
 
MOTION: Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the Business Travel and Expense Policy 
with the friendly amendments. Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   
 
Unscheduled Visitors 
 
Badger Mountain Contract 
 
Adam Fyall presented a contract with DelHur Industries to make improvements at Badger 
Mountain Preserve at no cost to the County.   
 
MOTION: Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the contract with DelHur Industries to 
make improvements at Badger Mountain Preserve.  Commissioner Small seconded and upon 
vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 



 - 3 - 

Employee of the Month - September 
 
Melina Wenner presented the award for “Employee of the Month” to Alex Sheridan, Office of 
Public Defense.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to accept the recommendation of Alex Sheridan for 
Employee of the Month and sign the letter.  Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the 
motion carried.  
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Fair – Benton County Booth  
 
Commissioner Beaver suggested someone write a letter thanking those who covered the County 
booth at the Fairgrounds and write a thank you letter to the Fair Association.  The Board agreed.   
 
The Board discussed the fair and thanked the county team and each board member said they 
received a lot of positive feedback about the fair and fairgrounds.  
 
Emergency Management Report  
 
Commissioner Small gave a copy of the report to the Board for its review.   
 
Public Works Department 
 
Chairman Bowman thanked the Public Works Department for its prompt response to putting up 
‘no parking” signs by the Yakima River on Grosscup. 
 
Benton PUD/Franklin PUD – Initiative – Renewable Resources  
 
Chairman Bowman said that Benton and Franklin PUDs had a joint meeting and passed a 
resolution to purchase renewable sources; also, they came up with a process and initiative to 
change some of the rules and asked the County if it wanted to join them in that support.  The 
Board agreed to have Administration review the issue and bring back a recommendation.  
 
Redistricting Meeting 
 
David Sparks stated that Ms. Smith Kelty organized a precinct redistricting meeting to be held at 
7:00 p.m. at the Justice Center this evening.   
 
Resolutions 
 
11-549 Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 101 
11-550 Copier Lease Agreement w/Ikon Office Solutions 
11-551 Rescinding Resolution 11-540, Ordinance Relating to Increased Fees in the 

Sheriff’s Office 



 - 4 - 

11-552 Second Contract Amendment w/Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc.   
11-553 Purchase Authorization w/A&B Asphalt 
11-554 Lease Agreement w/Atomic City Rollergirls 
11-555 Agreement w/Columbia Basin Veterans Coalition 
11-556 Truancy Contract w/Finley School District   
11-557 Truancy Contract w/Prosser School District 
11-558 Indigent Defense Payment Authorization for Attorney M. Spencer 
11-559 Purchase Authorization from ProForce Marketing, Inc. for Taser Weapons and 

Accessories 
11-560 Contract w/Apply-A-Line, Inc. for Pavement Markings 
11-561 Business Travel and Expense Policy 
11-562 Contractor Improvement Agreement with DelHur Industries 
 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:45 
a.m.  
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Special Board Meeting 
Tuesday, August 30, 2011, 1:30 p.m. 
 Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
 
Present: Chairman Leo Bowman 
  Commissioner James Beaver 
  Commissioner Shon Small  
 
Benton County Fire District #3 – Board of Fire Commission Interviews 
 
The Board interviewed applicants Tim Stewart, Gerry Sherman, and Brian Gustin for the 
open Commissioner position on the Benton County Fire District #3 Board of Fire 
Commission.  After review and consideration, the Board made the following motion: 
  
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to appoint Gerald Sherman to the Board of 
Fire Commission, Position #1, for Benton County Fire District #3.  Commissioner Small 
seconded and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
Resolution 
 
No. 11-563: Appointment of Gerald Sherman to Benton County Fire District #3 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 
approximately 2:50 p.m.   
 
 
___________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board     Chairman  



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 9-13-11        
Subject: Lease for 

Copiers 
Prepared by:       J. Delvin 
Reviewed by: ___________      

              

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  XX      
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda              XX    
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Benton County Clerk would like to enter into a sixty (60) month lease with Pacific Office Automation for 
the leasing of one (1) Canon copier. 
 
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Benton County Clerk would like to enter into a sixty (60) month lease with Pacific Office Automation 
for the leasing of one (1) Canon copier. 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Board sign the resolution authorizing execution of the Equipment Contract, as well as execute the original of 
the Equipment Contract.  
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
$0 
 
This lease replaces the lease on the one (1) previously leased copier. 
 
 
 
 
MOTION 
 
Motion to approve the resolution and execute the Equipment Agreement between the Benton County Clerk 
and Pacific Office Automation for sixty (60) month lease for one (1) Canon Copier. 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
a. Copier Lease w/Pacific Office Automation



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE LEASE AGREEMENT FOR ONE (1) COPIER 
FROM PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOMATION FOR THE BENTON COUNTY CLERK, 
 
WHEREAS, Pacific Office Automation is a vendor under State Contract #03706; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Clerk would like to enter into a sixty (60) month lease with 
Pacific Office Automation for the leasing of one (1) Canon copier; and 
 
WHEREAS, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference is the Equipment Contract 
along with a copy of the Equipment Agreement and State Contract #03706; together, these 
outline the fees to be charged to the Benton County Clerk for the lease of one (1) copier; and 
 
WHEREAS, the monthly maintenance and equipment agreement amounts and per copy charges 
will be as follows, including all supplies, except paper: 
 
 Juvenile department - $86.34 per month; $.0074 per black/white copy 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, 
  
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 
Washington, is hereby authorized to sign the Equipment Contract between the Benton County 
clerk and Pacific Office automation for a sixty (60) month lease for one (1) Canon copier, as is 
more specifically described in the Equipment Agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by this reference. 
 
Dated this ______________day of _____________________, 2011 
 
 

      ______________________________ 
                   Chairman of the Board 
 
       ______________________________ 
                    Member 
 
       ______________________________ 
                               Member 
 
       Constituting the Board of County 
       Commissioners of Benton County, 
       Washington. 
 
 
Attest:____________________________ 
           Clerk of the Board 
 
cc: J. Delvin, Clerk; File; R. Ozuna   











CurrentUser
Text Box
b. Letter to BF Fair Association Re 2011 Fair & Rodeo



CurrentUser
Text Box
c. Letter to Elected Officials & Managers Re 2011 Fair



CurrentUser
Text Box
d. Appreciation Letters Regarding Badger Mountain Centennial Preserve









CurrentUser
Text Box
e. Letter to City of Richland Re Recreational Use Agreements w/the Barker Ranch





CurrentUser
Text Box
f. Time of Remembrance Proclamation





CurrentUser
Text Box
g. Line Item Transfer Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107





CurrentUser
Text Box
h. Line Item Transfer Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137







CurrentUser
Text Box
i. House Bill 2124 and Senate Bill 5964 Support







CurrentUser
Text Box
j. Contract Amendment w/Dynamic Sales & Services, Inc.







CurrentUser
Text Box
k. Vehicle Purchase Authorization From Columbia Ford Mercury Hyundai





CurrentUser
Text Box
l. Surplus of Personal Property







CurrentUser
Text Box
m. Lease Addendum w/Bassett/Sonju J/V







CurrentUser
Text Box
n. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 551







CurrentUser
Text Box
o. Truancy Contract w/Pasco School District







CurrentUser
Text Box
p. Truancy Contract w/Kennewick School District







CurrentUser
Text Box
q. Authorization for Grant Expenditures





CurrentUser
Text Box
r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0504-101, Dept. 000







CurrentUser
Text Box
s. Personal Services Contract w/Penser NorthAmerica, Inc.







CurrentUser
Text Box
t. Public Hearing Authorization for Vacation of Unimproved Right of Way



CurrentUser
Text Box
u. Authorization to Proceed w/Apply-A-Line, Inc. Contract



CurrentUser
Text Box
v. Contract w/Custom Welding & Ornamental Iron, LLC for Installation of Bunk Ladders







CurrentUser
Text Box
w. Purchase Authorization for Miscellaneous Items from Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply, Inc.





CurrentUser
Text Box
x. Purchase Authorization for Food Service Gloves & Cups from Columbia Basin Paper & Supply





CurrentUser
Text Box
y. Purchase Authorization for Paper Towels from Airgas Safety, Inc.





CurrentUser
Text Box
aa. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0129-101, Dept. 000







CurrentUser
Text Box
Surplus Property – K Mercer









CurrentUser
Text Box
Public Urination Ordinance – R Lukson











 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
On August 22, 2011, James Parker submitted the attached request to rename Ferry PR NW 
a private access easement located off of Hansen Road.  Notices were sent to all affected 
agencies and as of this date, those agencies that have responded either had no comments 
or were in favor of the road name change.  A majority of the owners in the lots within the 
short plats affected by the access easement have signed the petition.  Attached are the 
Public Works Dept. and SECOMM comments on the proposed name change. 
 
 
SUMMARY 

A road name change request has been submitted to change a private access easement to 
Island View, Heron Island, or Sandy Beach PR NW.  A public meeting has been scheduled 
for September 13, 2011 at 9:05 a.m. to discuss and review the road name petition. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the comments from SECOMM, Department of Public Works and the applicant, it is 
the recommendation of the Planning Department that the Board approve the road name 
change request to Island View PR NW. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
None 
 
MOTION  
If at the conclusion of the public meeting the Board agrees with the staff recommendation 
they will need to make the following motion: The Board of County Commissioners adopts 
the change of road name from Ferry PR NW to Island View PR NW with the condition that 
Mr. Parker has thirty (30) days to pay the required sign fee for the construction and 
placement of the private road sign(s) to the Benton County Public Works Dept.  If the fee is 
not paid within thirty (30) days, the approval by the Board of County Commissioners will be 
declared null and void. 

AGENDA ITEM 

MTG. DATE: September 13, 2011 
SUBJECT: Private Road Naming - 
File No. PR 11-01 
MEMO DATE: September 1, 2011 
Prepared By: Donna Hutchinson 
Reviewed By: Mike Shuttleworth 

TYPE OF ACTION 

NEEDED 

Execute Contract  
Pass Resolution     X 
Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion      X 
Other    

Consent Agenda  
Public Hearing  
1st Discussion  
2nd Discussion  
Public Mtg.         X 

CurrentUser
Text Box
Private Road Name Change (PR11-01) – M Shuttleworth


	Web Packet 091311.pdf
	Agenda Minutes 083011
	Agenda Minutes 083011Sp
	CA - Clerk a
	agenda action sheet-copier
	RESOLUTION for copier
	BF County Clerks Copier Contract
	State Copier Contract

	CA - Commissioners b
	CA - Commissioners c
	CA - Commissioners d
	CA - Commissioners e
	CA - Commissioners f
	CA - Commissioners g
	CA - Commissioners h
	CA - Commissioners i
	CA - Facilities j
	CA - Fairgrounds k
	CA - Human Services l
	CA - Human Services m
	CA - Human Services n
	CA - Junenile o
	CA - Juvenile p
	CA - Juvenile q
	CA - Personnel r
	CA - Personnel s
	CA - Public Works t
	CA - Public Works u
	CA - Sheriff v
	CA - Sheriff w
	CA - Sheriff x
	CA - Sheriff y
	CA - Sheriff z
	CA - Treasurer aa
	Timed   Public Hearing Surplus
	Timed   Public Hearing Urination Ordinance
	Timed - Private Road Name Change 11-01
	Agenda Sheet
	Site Map
	Road Name Change Application
	Applicant's Site Map
	Public Works Comments
	SEECOMM  Comments




